
These are meeting minutes only.  Only text enclosed in quotation marks reports a speaker’s exact words. For complete contents of 
the proceeding, please refer to the audio recordings. 

 

 

Josephine County Budget Meeting Minutes – May 3, 2012, 4:00 p.m. 
Anne Basker Auditorium, 604 N.W. 6

th
 Street Grants Pass, Oregon 97526 

Present: Marie Hill, Harold Haugen, Keith Heck, Don Reedy, Larry West, and Simon Hare.  Attending: Rosemary 
Padgett, Budget Officer; Arthur O’Hare and Chris Carlson, Finance; Linda McElmurry, Recorder; members of the 
media and other interested parties.   

1) Open Meeting – Harold Haugen 
Chair Haugen opened the meeting at 4:04 p.m. 
 

2) Approve Minutes of April 24, 2012 
Ms. Hill made a motion to approve the minutes as presented, seconded by Mr. Heck.  Upon roll call vote, motion 
carried, 6 – 0; Mr. Heck – yes, Mr. Reedy – yes, Mr. West – yes, Mr. Hare – yes, Ms. Hill – yes, and Mr. Haugen – 
yes.   

3) Elected Officials Compensation Committee Recommendation  
Chair Haugen said this was continued from the last meeting and asked Rosemary Padgett, CFO to update the 
Committee.  Using Exhibit A, COLA Costs, Rosemary explained the annual cost would be about $17,000.   Chair 
Haugen explained that most counties supplement the District Attorneys salary and a question had come up 
about what role he plays to justify the county supplement.  He said that Stephen has done an excellent job so he 
offered him an opportunity to discuss his role for the county and added he was not recommending they reduce 
his salary.  Stephen Campbell, District Attorney said that counties supplement the salary paid by state if the 
County has looked at its overall pay structure and need to fit the District Attorney into that pay structure.  He 
explained the many services his office performs for the County.  Mr. Heck asked how many years it had been 
since he received a COLA from the State.  Stephen said they received a 1.5% COLA January 2012 and before that 
it had been three years.  He cited several ORS referencing salary and facilities for District Attorneys.   

Citizen comment: 
None heard 

Discussion & Action: 
Mr. Reedy said he stood by his recommendation of last week, accepting the recommendation except for Item 1, 
Elected Official COLA’s.  Mr. Reedy made a motion to approve the report with the exception of Item 1.  Motion 
died for lack of a second.  Mr. Heck made a motion to accept the Elected Officials Compensation report but have 
the Commissioners be deleted from the COLA  increase but let the other Elected Officials receive a COLA.  Motion 
died for lack of a second.  Mr. Hare made a motion to approve the report with the exception of Item 1, seconded 
by Mr. Reedy.  Mr. Heck encouraged the committee to delete the commissioners from receiving a COLA saying 
the rest of these people have been serving the county and are getting a decrease which he felt was 
disconcerting.  Mr. Hare said in the budget cycle of FY 12/13 the Board of Commissioners was not likely to give 
nonunion employees COLA’s which alleviates the issue of compression.  In a year that they were laying off 127 
people, to forgo a COLA was not too much to ask, for as leaders they should lead by example.  Ms. Hill was 
concerned this was not the point at which they should make this decision as they have not heard of the state or 
situation of the county suggesting they wait until the end of the presentations when they hear the whole impact.  
Rosemary Padgett, CFO said in the budget this year they were bargaining three contracts; no COLA’s and no 
increased medical coverage county wide.  Mr. West said in reality it was not the right time to pass wage 
increases of any description.  Mr. Heck asked the Commissioners to entertain a $20,000 salary reduction.   Upon 
roll call vote, motion carried, 5 – 1; Mr. Heck – no, Mr. Reedy – yes, Mr. West – yes, Mr. Hare – yes, Ms. Hill – yes, 
and Mr. Haugen – yes.   

a) Department Presentations:  
i) General Fund Presentations: 

(1) Forestry – Vic Harris 
Using Exhibit B, Forestry, Vic Harris explained that Josephine County is one of four other counties that have 
forests and went on to explain their objectives.  Mr. Heck asked if sales can be increased and what was the 
potential.  Vic said he would be talking to the Board of Commissioners next week, currently they know that three 
million board feet is sustainable.  They will increase the cuts next year which will help but it depends on the 
market.  In answering questions from the committee, Vic said the Forest Service has more dying per acre than 
the county cuts; with good management there is a sustainable yield on the O &C Lands.   

 



Budget Meeting – May 3, 2012 4:00 p.m. Page 2 of 3 
 

Citizen comment: 
None heard 

 
(2) Planning – Dave Wechner 

Dave Wechner, Planning Director reviewed Exhibit C, Planning with the committee.  Mr. West asked if the 
Economic Development money included in the budget was a grant or a loan.  Rosemary Padgett, CFO explained 
that rules surrounding the lottery money allows for the funding of Planning.  The discretion of how the monies 
are to be used and at what level was a Board decision.   

Citizen Comment: 
None Heard. 

 
(3) Transfer Overview – Rosemary Padgett 

Rosemary Padgett, CFO gave a general overview of the transfers requested from the General Fund to fund 
specific programs and supplement budgets.  She added that the transfer to Public Safety was reduced from $3 
million to $2 million to allow sufficient carryover to meet payroll.   

Citizen comment: 
None heard 

 
(a) Veterans – Lisa Shipley 

Lisa Shipley, Veterans Service Officer used Exhibit D to show the committee the huge impact their office has on 
the community.  She said there was no change in her request for General Funds.  Mr. Reedy said he regularly has 
constituents in his office commenting on the great work Lisa does.  Mr. Hare noted the money this program 
brings into the county is almost as much as what is collected by all the taxing districts together.  Mr. Haugen 
commented if the Feds would do their job we wouldn’t have to fund veterans but historically it has been such a 
problem to get through the federal red tape.    

Citizen comment: 
None heard 

(b) PEG – Rosemary Padgett 
Rosemary Padgett, CFO said this request would transfer $10,000 from the General Fund to the PEG Account for 
operations.  They are looking at a number of changes, including purchasing more in house equipment to save on 
operational costs.    

Citizen comment: 
None heard 

ii) Parks – Doreen Ferguson 
Doreen Ferguson, Parks Manager used Exhibit E and explained they had overcome a tremendous budget deficit 
by reducing staffing levels and increasing revenues.   Mr. Haugen asked if she had the number of users from last 
year.  Doreen said they had 66,000 nights of camping and hundreds used the parks daily.  Mr. West shared ideas 
about events that might be hosted if the Fairgrounds and Parks worked together. 

Citizen comment: 
None heard 

Rosemary Padgett, CFO emphasized the consolidation of Forestry and Parks, they have similar customers and will 
be able to share facility and staff costs.   

John Harelson, Treasurer said his staff covers counting of envelopes and have received more than $5,000 in a 
weekend.  He reminded the Board of Commissioners while it was gratifying to see this kind of support, it costs 
money, any time we add a program it comes with a staff cost.   

 
iii) Fair – Wes Brown 

Wes Brown, Fairgrounds Manager, used EXHIBIT F saying they are running the Fairgrounds as more of a business 
environment.  He said while Grants Pass Downs has been a classic, the industry as a whole is declining.  They will 
run racing this year, give it a face lift, and have brought in a racing expert that has done a great job for them.  He 
covered several other events scheduled at the Fairgrounds in 12/13. 

 



Budget Meeting – May 3, 2012 4:00 p.m. Page 3 of 3 
 

Citizen comment: 
None heard 
 
Chair Haugen called for a 5 minute break, meeting re-convened at 6:05 p.m. 

iv) Airport – Larry Graves 
Larry Graves, Manager for the Josephine County Airports introduced himself to the committee saying he had 
been hired in July 2011 to oversee the administration and operation of the two airports.   Using Exhibit G, 
Projected Revenue Charts he showed the dramatic reduction for this year saying the FAA has no money 
available for Josephine County this year, and not much more over the next five years.  He answered a variety of 
questions from the committee. 
 

 
4) May 10

th
 Presentations:  Public Works, Fleet, Public Health/Animal Control   

Rosemary Padgett, CFO requested that Budget Committee members let Finance know if they wanted other 
presentations. 
 

5) May 17
th

 Presentations:  Public Safety (Sheriff, District Attorney, Juvenile Justice) 
 

6) May 22
nd

 Presentations:  Continuation of Public Safety (if needed) 
 
7) Public Comment (limit of three minutes each, public comment may be allowed at additional meetings) 
None heard.   
 
Mr. Heck requested his recommendation to reduce Commissioner salaries be placed on an agenda.  Chair Haugen 
said he would put it on the May 22, 2012 agenda for discussion and debate at that time.  

 
 

Meeting adjourned at 6:24 p.m. 
 

____________________________ 

Linda McElmurry, Recorder 

 
 
 
Exhibit A   COLA Costs 
Exhibit B Forestry 
Exhibit C Planning 
Exhibit D Veterans 
Exhibit E Parks 
Exhibit F Fairgrounds 
Exhibit G Airports 

 


